1958

Gene W. Mower v. Etta Bohmke : Brief of Appellant

Utah Supreme Court

STATEMENT OF FACTS

This is an appeal from the major portion of an Order (R-92,93) made and entered by the Third District Court of Salt Lake County on the 27th day of January, 1958, refusing to set aside and declare null and void the Sheriff's Sale of that certain tract of improved real property in Salt Lake County, Utah, designated as 981 Lincoln Street, Salt Lake

City, Utah, which took place on the 4th day of June, 1957 and the Sheriff's Deed issued thereunder on the 27th day of November, 1957. While the aforesaid Order of the District Court did hold that the Sheriff's Deed was improper and invalid, it nevertheless ruled that the Sheriff might issue a new deed and also that the defendant be granted a sixty (60) day period of redemption from the date of filing of any newly issued deed in the office of the County Recorder of Salt Lake County.

A brief summary of the entire case and the proceedings leading up to the challenged Order of the District Court giving rise to this appeal will help to focus attention on the errors made by the District Court.

On the 19th day of October, 1949, judgment (R-29) was made and entered by the District Court of Salt Lake County against Etta Bolmke, defendant and appellant herein, a woman presently of the age of 74 years. She, at that time, made an attempt to appeal that judgment to the Supreme Court of Utah, but, pursuant to a motion prosecuted by plaintiff and ^{APPELLANT} herein, this Court dismissed the appeal and issued its Remittitur (R-40) because the Notice of Appeal was filed more than 90 days after the motion for New Trial was denied. Nothing further was done about the aforesaid judgment until the 14th day of February, 1957, when, pur-

suant to a Writ of Execution, the Sheriff of Salt Lake County, attached and levied upon Etta Bohmke's property at 981 Lincoln Street. (R-42,43) The said property was thereafter advertised to be sold at Sheriff's Sale on the 21st day of May, 1957, at 12:00 o'clock noon. (R-44) Although the Sheriff' Return of Sale already on file ^{AND OF} ~~with the~~ ^{RECORD} ~~and filed~~ with the County Clerk showed that the sale had been made on the 21st day of May, 1957, at 12:00 o'clock noon, the sale did not actually take place until the 4th day of June, 1957. The Sheriff's Return of Sale already on file with the County Clerk however was not changed and corrected to show the actual date of sale until sometime later, namely, approximately a month prior to the 21st day of January, 1958. (R-56)

Although the testimony concerning the postponement of the sale as originally scheduled and advertised to be held on the 21st day of May, 1957, is a little confusing, there is no conflict whatsaever in the record that when the sale was actually held on the 4th day of June, 1957, the only notice to Etta Bohmke, defendant and appellant herein, or to her attorney, that the sale would be held on that date, was a telephone call made by a Deputy Sheriff of Salt Lake County to Etta Bohmke's attorney just 30 minutes before the actual sale of the property took place. (R-55,73)

At the time the actual sale took place on the 4th day of June, 1957, a Declaration of Homestead (Exhibit D-1) had been previously filed for record with the County Recorder of Salt Lake County on the 6th day of May, 1957 (Exhibit D-1, R-63). of this, both the Sheriff's Office of Salt Lake County and the Deputy Sheriff who conducted the sale of Etta Bohmke's property, had actual knowledge. (R-57,58) nevertheless, the sale was carried out without any consideration whatsoever given to the Declaration of Homestead or any proper determination made as to its efficacy.

Thereafter and on the 27th day of November, 1957, a date obviously less than six (6) months from the date of the ^{SHERIFF'S SALE THE} Sheriff's Deed was issued which said deed was recorded on the 29th day of November, 1957, in the office of the County Recorder of Salt Lake County. (R-66) Again, a period less than six (6) months from and after the Sheriff's Sale.

It is appellant's position that the obvious and glaring failure to comply with required procedures prescribed for execution sales with reference to the sale of Etta Bohmke's home at 981 Lincoln Street, Salt Lake City, Utah, rendered the said proceedings nugatory, and while the District Court did hold that the Sheriff's Deed arising out of the aforesaid proceedings was improper and

invalid, it erred in not setting aside and declaring null and void the Sheriff's Sale. It erred also, in holding that the new deed could be issued, from the recording of which, defendant and appellant herein, would have sixty (60) days within which to redeem.

STATEMENT OF POINT

- No.I NO PROPER NOTICE OF THE SALE DATE^{11/4/5} GIVEN TO JUDGMENT DEBTOR OR TO JUDGMENT DEBTOR'S ATTORNEY.
- No.II NO CONSIDERATION WAS GIVEN TO THE DECLARATION OF HOMESTEAD ON FILE NOR WAS ANY PROPER DETERMINATION MADE AS TO ITS EFFICACY.
-

ARGUMENT

- No.I NO PROPER NOTICE WAS GIVEN TO JUDGMENT DEBTOR OR TO JUDGMENT DEBTOR'S ATTORNEY OF THE DAY UPON WHICH THE SALE OF

THE SUBJECT PROPERTY WAS MADE.

Both the policy and positive enactment of the law require that proper notice of execution sales be given.

Notice of execution sales is required for the purpose of securing bidders and preventing a sacrifice of the property.

21 Am. Jur., Executions, Sec. 188
If a sale is regularly adjourned or postponed, due and seasonable notice must be given of the place and time to which it is so adjourned or postponed; and in the absence of such notice, the sale will be void.

31 Am. Jur., Judicial Sales, Sec. 78.

The only notice given to the judgment debtor in the instant case was that given by the Deputy Sheriff who sold the property. This notice was given to the judgment debtor's attorney via telephone no earlier than thirty minutes prior to the time at which the property was sold. (R-73)

*** If notice of postponement is in fact substantially misleading, erroneous, or insufficient to afford a full and fair notice of the time, place, and terms of the postponed sale, it will be invalid and the sale will be void.

31 Am. Jur., Judicial Sales, Sec. 79

In the instant case the record establishes that postponement was agreed upon between counsel for the respective parties. It was, however, a postponement on condition — the condition being that a definite date be fixed, and that notice thereof be effected upon the return to town of counsel for judgment creditor. (R-72,59) The Deputy Sheriff who sold the property implies there was a condition attached to the postponement when he related his conversation with counsel for judgment debtor, at page twelve of the transcript (R-59).“ ** it was agreed at that moment anyway for a postponement, that something would happen if we had this postponement. and of course it never materialized and the sale was then, of course ordered conducted June 4th, 1957.” The Deputy does not say what the condition was nor how he knows it didn't materialize, but the fact that there was such a condition is clear from the testimony of the Deputy, counsel for the creditor, and counsel for the debtor. (R-59, 72, 83, 84) The fact that one of the counsel for judgment creditor and counsel for judgment debtor both understood that the sale would be set over until the other counsel for judgment creditor returned to the city shows that the sale had been set over to an indefinite date, and shows, without question, that something more re-

mained to be done before the sale was held and if that something failed to materialize, that a new and definite notice of the time, place and terms of the sale was contemplated. The very nature of this indefinite transaction demands such a notice.

The case of *Clark v Simmons*, 150 Mass. 357, 23 N.E. 108, is illustrative of the policy of the law toward forced sales of a person's property. It was a case wherein a mortgagee postponed his foreclosure sale, and the question which was raised on appeal, was the question as to the notice of the time and place to which the sale had been postponed. The facts showed that the only notice of the day to which the sale was postponed was given to the mortgagor by letter which he received at nine o'clock P.M. on the day prior to the sale. Because of the short notice, the mortgagor thereupon made inquiry in and about the neighborhood of the sale property attempting to appraise himself of the pertinent facts surrounding the sale. The mortgagor had, prior to the receipt of this notice, made a request of the mortgagee to notify him when he should take action looking to a sale. Because of the failure of the mortgagor to give the proper notice, the court overturned the sale under the mortgage in these words, "Under these circumstances, we think that the defendant failed to do that which the exercise of good faith and the use

of proper diligence required of him for the protection of the plaintiff's interests."

It is to be noted in the case at hand that counsel for judgment debtor received a much shorter notice, viz., a telephone call from the Deputy Sheriff at about 11:30 A.M. of the day of the sale, informing him the sale would take place at noon of that day. Even then, counsel made urgent efforts to reach parties interested in bidding in the property. (R-73)

It is submitted as axiomatic that the safeguards of the law in the form of good and sufficient notice in cases of execution sales, judicial sales, and other forced sales, are designed primarily to protect persons whose property is about to be expropriated against their will. Therefore, unless proper notice is given, the policy of the law is thwarted and a person is deprived of his property unconscionably.

While the law in this state is most exacting as to notice in the case of execution sales ~~when~~ it does however provide for a postponement of a scheduled execution sale when it is deemed expedient and for the interest of all concerned. Rule 69 (e) (2) of the Utah Rules of Civil procedure provides as follows:

If at the time appointed for the sale of any real or personal property on execution

the officer shall deem it expedient and for the interest of all persons concerned to postpone the sale for want of purchasers, or other sufficient cause, he may postpone the same from time to time, until the same shall be completed; and in every such case he shall make public declaration thereof at the time and place previously appointed for the sale, and if such postponement is for a longer time than a day, notice thereof shall be given in the same manner as the original notice of sale is required to be given.

The testimony of the Deputy Sheriff who postponed the sale of Etta Bohmke's property in this case from the 21st day of May, 1957, to the 4th day of June, 1957, is that each day at noon (he) appeared at the west steps of the County Court House and postponed it." (R-54) He reiterates his statement two or three times that the postponement was made "each day". He does not state that he postponed the sale from Saturday to Monday for the two Sundays which intervened between the aforesaid dates or that he skipped Decoration Day, a legal holiday, which also intervened between the aforesaid scheduled dates. The only ~~inference~~^{REFERENCE} ~~intervened~~ which can be derived from his testimony is that he appeared on each of the days between May 21st and June 4th to postpone the scheduled

sale from day to day. In this connection anything which he did on either of the two Sundays or on Decoration Day with reference to the sale of Etta Bohmke's property would be illegal and void and as a consequence the subsequent sale of her property on the 4th day of June, 1957, would be illegal and void. Section 78-7-8 Utah Code Annotated, 1953, provides in part as follows:

No court can be opened, nor can any judicial business be transacted, on Sunday, on any day which general election is held, or on any legal holiday, except for the following purposes:

None of the exceptions to section 78-7-8 refer to or in any way authorize or permit of Sheriff Sales on Sunday or on legal holidays. Furthermore, unlike some of the other Rules of Civil Procedure, and unlike many of the statutory provisions of the State of Utah, there is nothing in Rule 69 (e) (2) dealing with the postponement of an execution sale which says or indicates that if the day to which an execution sale should be postponed should happen to be a Sunday or a legal holiday such postponed sale date is deemed to be on the following day. It would seem therefore that in either alternative of this case the Sheriff's Sale which was held on the 4th day of June, 1957, was illegal and void. If the Deputy Sheriff who postponed

the sale had actually postponed it from Saturday to Monday for the two intervening Sundays, which, by his own testimony he did not, then he in any event did not give notice thereof "in the same manner as the original notice of sale is required to be given". On the other hand, if he actually cried out the postponement of the sale on the two Sundays and on Decoration Day on which they would have been held but for his postponing them, then his action on those days is illegal and void in view of the provisions of Section 78-7-8 and the subsequent sale on the 4th day of June, 1957, is also illegal and void. See also in this connection the holding of this Court in the case of Davidson v. Munsey, 27 U 87, 74 P. 431.

No.II NO CONSIDERATION WAS GIVEN TO THE DECLARATION OF HOMESTEAD ON FILE NOR WAS ANY PROPER DETERMINATION MADE AS TO ITS EFFICACY.

There is no dispute in the record at all that the Deputy Sheriff who conducted the execution sale of Etta Bohmke's property had actual knowledge that a Declaration of Homestead had been made and was on file and of record against the

property being sold. In spite of this, the property was sold without any consideration being given to the Homestead Declaration, and, without any determination being made as to its efficacy. ~~It is submitted that a failure to consider and make a proper judicial determination as to the efficacy of a prior Homestead Declaration, and, without any determination being made as to its efficacy.~~ It is submitted that a failure to consider and make a proper judicial determination as to the efficacy of a prior Homestead Declaration concerning which there is actual knowledge voids the Sheriff's Sale of such property, and, in this case, voids the Sheriff's Sale of Etta Bohmke's property.

CONCLUSION

It is submitted that the failure to give proper notice concerning the execution sale of Etta Bohmke's home at 981 Lincoln Street rendered the said sale nugatory, and, that the District Court erred in not ruling that the said sale was illegal and void. The District Court erred also in ruling that the new Sheriff's Deed could be issued, and, acted completely outside the scope of its judicial authority in holding that Etta Bohmke could have sixty (60) days within which to redeem from and after the recording of any such newly issued deed

since the prerogative of making provision for redemption lies with the Legislature and not with the Court. Its decision in the above respects should be reversed.