1958

Gene W. Mower v. Etta Bohmke : Brief of Respondent

Utah Supreme Court

STATEMENT OF FACTS

The only facts pertinent to this appeal are in connection with the Sheriff's Sale of that certain real property known as 981 Lincoln Street, Salt Lake City, Utah, to satisfy Respondent's judgment against Appellant, which had stood for almost eight years at the time of said Sheriff's Sale.

There appears to be no dispute on the facts in regard to the Sheriff performing the necessary acts required in such sales under Rule 69 of Utah Rules of Civil Procedure, at

least up to the time of the requested postponement of the sale, on or about May 20, 1957.

The postponement of the sale was at the special instance and request of both the Sheriff of Salt Lake County and the Counsel for Appellant, Etta Bohmke, and was reluctantly (R. 72, 75) agreed to by Gaylen S. Young, Jr., (R. 59, 60, 72) associate counsel for Respondent, upon the express condition that the Sheriff would postpone from day to day in accordance with Utah law without the necessity of Respondent incurring further delays and expenses in having to re-advertise or re-notice the sale (R. 72), and upon the further condition and stipulation of counsel for Appellant that they waive any rights to re-advertisement or re-notice on the sale by reason of said postponement (R. 72, 75).

It was understood by both the Sheriff and counsel for Appellant that the postponement, as requested by them, was to take place for the purpose of awaiting the return of Gaylen S. Young, Sr., which was understood wouldn't be for about ten days time (R. 61, 72, 84).

Sheriff Holley cried the postponement of the sale from day to day until June 4, 1957, on which date the property was sold. The facts further show that Gaylen S. Young, Sr. returned to Salt Lake City near the end of May, 1957, and attempted to contact by phone Appellant's attorney, leaving word for him to call back on two or three occasions, and thereafter, since no word was heard, or offers received from Appellant or her attorney, the Sheriff finally went ahead with the sale on June 4, 1957 (R. 84, 85, 80).

The facts seem to be in conflict as to whether there was supposed to be some further agreement between the respective

counsel as to a future date for the Sheriff's Sale (R. 84), but it is clear that counsel for Appellant was notified of the actual sale before it took place and that he made no effort whatsoever to object or further postpone the same (R. 74, 75).

The facts further show that neither Appellant, nor her counsel, James Barker, Jr., made any objection or raised any question as to notice after the sale had taken place, but that after James Barker, Jr. had withdrawn as Appellant's counsel, Appellant, with new counsel, files a motion to set aside the sale which had taken place more than 6 months previous, and after Respondent's judgment had expired.

Appellant's attorney refers to "The obvious and glaring failure to comply with required procedures prescribed for execution sales," but there are no facts to support this statement. True, there was an error made by the Sheriff's office in recording the proper date, but no argument is made by counsel on this matter, so no further facts or arguments will be stated by counsel in this Brief.

As to the "Declaration of Homestead," filed by Appellant, the facts are clear that there is no claim, nor showing on the declaration itself, that Mrs. Bohmke is a "Head of a family" (R. 70, Exhibit D-1).

It is, therefore, Respondent's position that Appellant's motion and appeal is not well taken, that the Sheriff acted according to law in said Sheriff's Sale, that proper and due notice was given, and that Appellant should be estopped now in raising any question as to lack of notice in an attempt to void said sale.

STATEMENT OF POINTS

POINT I

PROPER NOTICE WAS GIVEN JUDGMENT
DEBTOR OF SHERIFF'S SALE.

POINT II

ADEQUATE CONSIDERATION WAS GIVEN TO
HOMESTEAD RIGHTS, AND THERE WAS NOT A
PROPER DECLARATION ON FILE.

ARGUMENT

POINT I

PROPER NOTICE WAS GIVEN JUDGMENT
DEBTOR OF SHERIFF'S SALE.

It must be kept in mind that the only real question raised by Appellant in this appeal is whether the Sheriff's Sale can be declared void by reason of the postponement of said sale and the amount of notice that was given before the actual sale took place. Since this is apparently the only real issue, it must be borne in mind that the postponement of the sale was clearly brought about and promoted through

Appellant's counsel, James Barker, Jr. (R. 59) and then specifically requested of Respondent's counsel through Sheriff Holley and James Barker, Jr., as was testified to by both Sheriff Holley and James Barker, Jr. (R. 59, 60, 72). Further it was specifically agreed and stipulated by said counsel for Appellant that they were waiving any rights they might have to further re-advertisement or re-notice on the sale by reason of the postponement. This was made a condition, clearly for the reason that Gaylen S. Young, Sr. was out of town and was not expected back for about ten days, and because the statute on postponement of a Sheriff's Sale was not absolutely clear as to the length of time for a postponement without additional notice. Appellant's own counsel testified at the hearing as follows:

“Harry Holley said he wanted to settle it, and I thought Gaylen Young, Jr. would be amenable to postponing the sale and I called him up. He said he would be agreeable to setting the sale over until his father got back. He was worried about posting notice, and he didn't want to go through the expense of posting notice. I said if he agreed to postpone, and if the homestead matter fell through, I would withdraw as attorney and we would agree to the date, and the sale take place, and we had had notice and no new notices needed to be posted, and he said under those circumstances it was agreeable to postpone the sale, and we agreed both would call Harry Holley, stating that is the agreement.” (See Record Page 72)

It certainly appears to counsel for Respondent that Appellant, after waiting more than six months from the actual sale date, after Respondent's judgment had expired,

and after acquiring new counsel, is out of order in prosecuting this appeal on this ground. It is Respondent's position, therefore, that even if Appellant's argument were sound, which we claim it is not, Appellant has waived her rights to additional notice and should be estopped from asserting that the lack of such notice makes the said Sheriff's Sale void. Respondent is supported by the law in this matter as shown in 21 American Jurisprudence—Executions—Sections 186, 187, and 195. Section 195 on "Waiver and Estoppel" is quoted as follows:

"Notice of an execution sale is primarily for the benefit of the defendant, who may waive his right to object to the lack of it or to irregularities connected therewith, at least where there are no liens on the property. Moreover, the objection will be considered as waived unless made within a reasonable time by the defendant in execution or by some person who has been prejudiced." (See also 31 American Jurisprudence—Judicial Sales—Section 261).

Again in 21 American Jurisprudence—Executions—Section 196, Page 100 it states:

"An execution sale at a time other than that prescribed by law has been held not to render the sale void, but to be a mere irregularity which may be waived by the execution debtor . . ."

It is Respondent's contention, however, that the sale did take place as prescribed by law and that due and seasonable notice was given. Notice was properly given of the sale as prescribed by statute to the time of postponement, which is not denied, then during the postponement period the

Sheriff cried the postponement of the sale, each day, from day to day, and in addition contacted, personally, Appellant's counsel before the sale, after all reasonable efforts had been made by Respondent's counsel to do so. Counsel, in Appellant's brief, makes a point of the fact (which is in dispute) that some definite sale date would have to be agreed upon by the parties before the Sheriff's Sale could take place. This would appear to be quite out of reason, for that would have left it in the hands of Appellant to delay at will the sale date for an indefinite length of time. The whole spirit and intent of the postponement was to await the return of Gaylen S. Young, Sr., who had been handling the case for Respondent, to confer with them on an offer that was supposed to be presented, or forthcoming from Appellant, (which offer was never in fact made) and then the sale to be conducted. (See R. 59, 60, 61, 72, 75, 83, 84, 85). However, the fact that Appellant's counsel did not return the calls made to his office, and the fact that no objection whatsoever was made to the Sheriff going ahead with the sale after personal contact was made, indicates that Appellant *did* agree to the sale taking place on June 4, 1957, and cannot now object to any lack of notice. The fact, also, that all attempts to come to some agreement between the parties had failed prior to this time, and the fact that an offer, substantially the same as that which James Barker, Jr. testified was agreeable with Appellant at the time of the request for the postponement, was made by Respondent to Appellant after the sale was consummated, but again refused, (R. 77), leads one to believe that Appellant was not seriously considering making any offer to Respondent, and Respondent

was certainly justified in having the sale take place after making reasonable efforts to contact Appellant.

Under these circumstances counsel for Appellant cannot claim that the notice of postponement was substantially misleading, erroneous, or insufficient or that due and seasonable notice of time and place of adjournment was not given.

In 31 American Jurisprudence—Judicial Sales—Section 79, it states as follows:

“The weight of authority apparently supports the view that a notice of adjournment of a sale, which has been in all respects regularly advertised, is sufficient if made in good faith, and if reasonably calculated to give proper publicity as to time and place. Reasonable effort to prevent a sacrifice of the property is all that is necessary, the sufficiency of a notice depending largely on the particular facts of the case wherein it was given. Personal service of the notice is not necessary, it may in a proper case, be given by publication in a newspaper, *or by proclamation.*” (See also 31 American Jurisprudence—Judicial Sales—Section 80, and 37 American Jurisprudence—Mortgages—Section 613).

Counsel is not aware of any Utah law interpreting the statute on “Postponement” as set out in Rule 69 (e) (2) of Utah Rules of Civil Procedure, but it is clear that the Salt Lake County Sheriff’s Office has postponed sales in the past, and it has been their custom to postpone from day to day and not have to re-advertise or re-notice the sale. That is what Sheriff Holley informed counsel for Respondent on at the time of the request for postponement and how he

testified at the hearing in this matter (R. 54). We submit that under the statute the Sheriff may, on his own, if he deems it expedient, postpone the sale. He deemed it expedient in this case, and did it in the manner to which he had been accustomed. Such custom should be a factor in considering what the Legislature had intended on such postponements. The statute also indicates that the officer "may postpone the same from *time to time*, until the same shall be completed," indicating, it seems, that several days were contemplated, because the statute goes on to say what kind of notice is needed in that event, to-wit, only a proclamation, for it states, "and in every such case he shall make public declaration thereof at the time and place previously appointed for the sale." The only restriction on this type of notice, then, was in case the officer postponed the sale for a longer period than a day. In the case at bar, Sheriff Holley postponed by public proclamation for a day at a time, clearly within the spirit and meaning of the statute. In 21 American Jurisprudence, Section 242, Page 123, it states.

"Execution sales are not scrutinized by the courts with a view to defeat them. On the contrary, every reasonable intendment will be made in their favor so as to secure, if such can be done consistently with legal rules, the object they were intended to accomplish."

Where an officer is exercising due diligence and acts in good faith and with an honest intention to perform his duty, he should be given some latitude of discretion, and where it is within reason to do so, we submit that his acts should be upheld by the courts. (See *Williams vs. Conti-*

mental Securities Corporation, 153 P 2nd 852, also 31 American Jurisprudence—Judicial Sales—Section 42.)

There is another factor to be considered in this matter, and that is, if the acts of the Sheriff in this sale render the sale void for the reasons stated by opposing counsel, then surely it would place a cloud on the title of all other real property where the Sheriff has performed in a similar fashion.

It is not clear whether Sheriff Holley postponed the sale from one business day to the next, where Sundays or holidays intervened, or whether the proclamation was actually made on said Sundays and holiday; however, in either event, counsel for Respondent is of the opinion that there would be no violation of the meaning of the statute which would require re-advertisement or re-notice as originally given.

In the 1953 Utah Code the word “day” is used rather than “twenty-four hours,” as used in the 1943 Utah Code at 104-37-20. This apparently was the only change made when this section was repealed by laws 1951, Ch. 58, Sec. 3. No doubt the Legislature had in mind the postponement from one business day to the next as is also contemplated in the statute pertaining to “time” found in Rule 6 (a) of the Utah Rules of Civil Procedure. A “day” by this rule does not include Sundays or holidays. So if the Sheriff postponed the sale from one business day to the next, we submit that he was within “one day” as contemplated by the statute.

However, if the proclamation was made on a Sunday or a holiday by the Sheriff, postponing the sale to the next day, again, we submit that it would not render the sale

illegal and void as argued by counsel for Appellant. Section 78-7-8 Utah Code Annotated 1953 does indicate that the courts are not open, nor can judicial business be transacted on Sunday and legal holidays, with certain exceptions, among, which, however, are "executions"; but there is no mention of making such acts void. It merely indicates that where such business does fall upon said days, "it is deemed appointed for, or adjourned to, the next day." It is further Respondent's contention that a Sheriff's sale is not a "judicial act" or "judicial business" that comes within the meaning of this statute. (See 58 ALR, 1273; also *White vs. Zust* 28 N. J. Eq 107 and cited in the annotation 58 ALR at Page 1275.)

Again it is submitted that the consideration and interpretation to be given in this case should be that most favorable to upholding said Sheriff's sale as valid.

POINT II

ADEQUATE CONSIDERATION WAS GIVEN TO HOMESTEAD RIGHTS, AND THERE WAS NOT A PROPER DECLARATION ON FILE.

Since counsel cited no cases to support this ground of Appellant's appeal and has made only a passing statement concerning it, we assume he is not serious on this point.

Even in the case where there is a homestead right, it is clear in the law that the judgment creditor may have execution against the homestead and may have the same sold,

where the homestead exceeds in value the exemption. See Utah Code Annotated 1953, 28-1-15 and Notes; 28-1-2; 28-1-14; and Giesy-Walker Co. vs. Briggs, 162 P 876.

In the instant case it is clear that the value of the real property far exceeds the homestead exemption claim (Exhibit D-1), and therefore we submit that the Sheriff's sale of said property is not void. This would also be the case, even if a proper homestead declaration were on file. However, it is Respondent's contention that the homestead declaration filed by Appellant is of no force or effect, and is null and void.

The law requires under 28-1-10 Utah Code Annotated 1953, as follows:

“The homestead must be selected and claimed by the homestead claimant by making, signing and acknowledging a declaration of homestead as provided in section 28-1-11, Utah Code Annotated 1953, which declaration must, before the time stated in the notice of sale on execution, or on other judicial sale, as the time of sale, of premises in which the homestead is claimed, be delivered to and served upon the sheriff or other officer conducting the sale or recorded as provided in section 28-1-12, Utah Code Annotated 1953. *If no such claim is filed or served as herein provided, title shall pass to the purchaser at such sale free and clear of all homestead rights.*”

Also 28-1-11 of the said Code requires the following:

“The declaration of homestead must contain:

(1) A statement showing *the person making it to be the head of a family*, or, when the declaration

is made by the wife, showing that her husband has not made such declaration.

(2) A description of the premises.

(3) An estimate of their cash value.”

It is undisputed from the facts that Appellant's Declaration does not contain a statement showing her to be the “head of a family,” and therefore, Appellant has not made a claim as provided by 28-1-11. Consequently, title to the real property passed to the purchaser at the Sheriff's sale free and clear of all homestead rights as indicated in 28-1-10 of said Code.

CONCLUSION

Respondent respectfully submits that the view held by the District Court is the proper one and that the appeal should be dismissed and the judgment of the District Court should be affirmed with costs to Respondent.